

Intramural Sports Participant Handbook

2017-18



Updated 10/18/2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PROGRAM OVERVIEW	4
UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING	4
DIVISION OF STUDENT AFFAIRS	4
DEPARTMENT OF CAMPUS RECREATION	4
INTRAMURAL SPORTS	4
GENERAL POLICIES	5
STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT	5
SPORT RULES	
RELEASE OF LIABILITY	
MODEL RELEASE	
ALCOHOL, DRUG, AND TOBACCO POLICY	
ELIGIBILITY	
ELIGIBILITY STATEMENT	
WHO IS ELIGIBLE	
DUAL ENROLMENT	
ID POLICY	
ASSUMED NAMES (LYING ABOUT IDENTITIY)	
INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETES ELIGIBILITY	
REGISTRATION	
ONLINE REGISTRATION - IMLEAGUES	
TEAM NAME POLICY	
ADDING PARTICIPANTS TO A TEAMTEAM REGISTRATIONS-WITH FEES	
FREE AGENTS	
PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES	
LEVELS OF COMPETITION	
PLAYOFFS/POST-SEASON	
PLAYOFF OPPORTUNITIES	
PLAYOFF ELIGIBILITY	
PLAYOFF SCHEDULING	
EQUIPMENT AND ATTIRE	11
EQUIPMENT STATEMENT	
FORFIET/DEFAULT	
GRACE PERIOD	
FORFEIT POLICY	
DEFAULT POLICY	
SPORTSMANSHIP	
RATING SYSTEM	
PARTICIPANT EJECTIONS AND SUSPENSIONS	
PROTEST POLICIES	
PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY PROTEST	
I ANTICH AINT ELIGIDILITT ROTEST	14



RULE INTERPRETATION PROTEST	14
APPEALS	
OVERALL CAMPUS CHAMPIONS	
ELIGIBILITY	15
ENTRY INFORMATION	15
POINT SYSTEM	16
SCOREKEEPING	17
AWARDS	
STUDENT EMPLOYMENT	18
OFFICIATING OPPORTUNITIES	18
EXPECTATIONS OF INTRAMURAL OFFICIALS	18
HIRING PROCESS	18
EXTRAMURAL TOURNAMENTS	
CONTACT INFORMATION	19
RECSPORTS STAFF	19
SOCIAL MEDIA	19
IMPORTANT PHONE NUMBERS	20
LOCATION OF RECSPORTS FACILITIES	21



PROGRAM OVERVIEW

UNIVERSITY OF WYOMING

The University of Wyoming aspires to be one of the nation's finest public land-grant research universities. We serve as a statewide resource for accessible and affordable higher education of the highest quality; rigorous scholarship; technology transfer; economic and community development; and responsible stewardship of our cultural, historical, and natural resources.

In the exercise of our primary mission to promote learning, we seek to provide academic and co-curricular opportunities that will:

- Expose students to the frontiers of scholarship and creative activity and the complexities of an interdependent world;
- Ensure individual interactions among students, faculty, and staff;
- Nurture an environment that values and manifests diversity, free expression, academic freedom, personal integrity, and mutual respect; and
- Promote opportunities for personal growth, physical health, athletic competition, and leadership development for all members of the university community.

As Wyoming's only university, we are committed to outreach and service that extend our human talent and technological capacity to serve the people in our communities, our state, the nation, and the world.

DIVISION OF STUDENT AFFAIRS

The Division of Student Affairs is committed to supporting students in access, development, success, and completion. To do so, they look to expand student recruiting and access, coordinate and expand student success and completion strategies, coordinate and expand student health and wellness, promote and provide opportunities for alumni and parent engagement, and provide facilities supporting student access and learning.

DEPARTMENT OF CAMPUS RECREATION

Our mission is to provide recreational opportunities to a diverse campus community that enhance the learning and workplace environment and promote mental and physical health via quality facilities, equipment, and programs. Our programs, which include Open Recreation, Intramural Sports, Club Sports, and the Outdoor Program, offer a broad range of coordinated activities for individuals and groups that promote health awareness, a sense of community, and a lifelong appreciation for wellness and recreational activities. Supporting the value of student development, our programs strive to offer opportunities to students that develop leadership skills and promote responsibility while maintaining a balance between personal, professional, and academic pursuits.

INTRAMURAL SPORTS

The Intramural Sports Program offers University of Wyoming students, faculty, staff, and spouses the opportunity to participate in a wide variety of individual, dual, team, and meet sports at various levels of

competition. Intramural Sports strives to provide structured and organized programs, while assisting in the fulfillment of such basic human needs as relaxation, socialization, achievement, and physical wellness, while promoting teamwork and mutual respect. It is the goal of the Intramural Sports Program to provide the University of Wyoming community the opportunity to participate in the sport of their choice in a fun, friendly, and safe environment.

GENERAL POLICIES

STUDENT CODE OF CONDUCT

University of Wyoming students and their actions are subject to the University of Wyoming Student Code Of Conduct. Campus Recreation and the Intramural Sports program will enforce all sections of this code to insure that participants feel welcome and enjoy the benefits of a recreational activity. The entire Student Code of Conduct is available online via the Dean of Students Office. (https://www.uwyo.edu/dos/conduct/index.html).

SPORT RULES

Rules and regulations are designed for the safety and protection of participants. It should be understood that by participating in Intramural Sports contests, each individual has agreed to abide by all rules and regulations and is responsible for his/her behavior.

All contests shall be governed by Intramural Sports rules adopted from NIRSA, the NCAA, the NFHS, or amateur rules. Modifications will be made to adjust for risk, space, time, and number constraints. The rules for each sport are made available to all participants and can be found here:

http://www.uwyo.edu/rec/intramural-sports/rules.html. The Intramural Sports program reserves the right to institute any rule change and will notify all team captains with the changes.

RELEASE OF LIABILITY

There are certain risks of injury that are inherent to participation in sports. These types of injuries may be minor or serious and may result from the actions or inactions of the participant or others. Maintenance of good physical health and appropriate financial planning in the form of insurance in the event of a physical mishap can give you more peace of mind while participating. Each participant will be required to sign a Release of Liability Waiver prior to participating in any Intramurals event. This waiver is included online on the IMLeagues.com registration page.



MODEL RELEASE

Also included in the registration process is the model release for all photos taken during intramural events. By agreeing, you waive the rights to all photos you may appear in. Pictures taken throughout the year, including champion photos, may be posted to the Intramural Sports social media pages and or other UW media outlets.

ALCOHOL, DRUG, AND TOBACCO POLICY

No alcohol, drugs or tobacco products are allowed in university buildings or at intramural/city fields before, during, or after intramural sports competition. The intramural sports staff reserves the right to restrict play or eject anyone suspected of being under the influence of drugs or alcohol. Intramural spectators are also obligated to abide by these same rules and the intramural sports staff reserves the right to remove these individuals from the venue.

ELIGIBILITY

ELIGIBILITY STATEMENT

Each participant is responsible for their own eligibility. Furthermore, each team captain is responsible for the eligibility of their team members. Inquiring about eligibility in advance of contests prevents delays and potential protest(s). The Intramural Sports staff will check the eligibility of participants if an opposing captain lodges a protest (see protest policies). The Intramural Sports staff reserves the right to put into immediate effect any rule changes or modifications regarding eligibility. The Intramural Sports staff reserves the right to handle eligibility violations without a formal protest.

WHO IS ELIGIBLE

- Full-time UW Students (12 or more undergraduate credits and have paid the Campus Recreation student fee as part of their semester tuition)
- Part-time UW students who have a current Campus Recreation membership that is valid during the dates they play.
- Faculty/Staff who have a current Campus Recreation membership that is valid during the dates they play.
- Spouses of Students, Faculty, or Staff who have a current WyoOne ID Card and a current Campus Recreation membership that is valid during the dates they play. (Access to the facilities is the responsibility of the participant!)
 - Spouses who do not have a @uwyo.edu email account need to be admin added into the IMLeagues site. Please contact our office for assistance.

DUAL ENROLMENT

Students that are dual enrolled at UW and another institution are eligible to play ONLY if they meet one of the eligibility requirements.

ID POLICY

NO UW ID=NO PLAY, NO EXCEPTIONS.

All participants must present their current, valid UW ID card (WyoOne Cards ONLY) to the Intramural Sports staff prior to participation in every contest. Other forms of ID will not be accepted-this includes driver's licenses, class schedules, bank account statements, etc. The photo on the card must be easily discernible. ID's without easily viewable photos will not be accepted.

ASSUMED NAMES (LYING ABOUT IDENTITIY)

Anyone participating or attempting to participate using another person's ID or information will be suspended from intramurals indefinitely, and may be reported to the Dean of Students.

INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETES ELIGIBILITY

- Varsity Athletes
 - Any individual who is or has been a member of the current varsity squad at a NCAA Division 1 institution is not eligible to compete in the intramural competition of their varsity sport or any sports related to that field for two (2) calendar years following the completion of the semester they last participated in that sport. Included in this rule are redshirt and practice team athletes. Teams are limited to two (2) ex-varsity athletes on the team roster and must play in the competitive division of competition.
- Junior or Community College Participants
 - Junior or community college transfer students in their first year at UW, who competed at their previous schools on the varsity squad, must enter in the competitive division of their specialty sport. Teams are limited to two first year junior or community college participants.

CLUB SPORT MEMBER ELIGIBILITY

Teams are limited to two (2) Club Sport participants in their similar or related sport. Teams consisting of club sports participants must enter and compete in the competitive division. The official club sports roster from the current academic year will be used. A club player is defined as an individual who has signed the Club Sports waiver and played in one contest or paid the club dues in the current academic year.

REGISTRATION

ONLINE REGISTRATION - IMLEAGUES

All Intramural participants must create an account on IMLeagues - www.imleagues.com/wyoming. The following are the steps involved in entering an intramural event:

- 1. Team captains must create an account through www.imleagues.com using their UWYO email address.
- 2. The captain will then choose the sport that he/she wants to participate in through the Intramural Sports calendar of events found under the University of Wyoming tab.
- 3. Captains will choose the league they wish to compete in and select their division time.
- 4. Captains will click the "Create Team" button and input the necessary information.
- 5. By accepting the online waiver, participants agree to the Intramural Sports policies.
- 6. Captains and teammates may have to complete and pass a short online quiz (depending on the sport).
- 7. Sign-ups are on a first come, first serve basis. The earlier a team signs up, the more choices available for playing times. On occasion, if facilities and/or time are limited, only a pre-determined number of teams will be accepted. Teams who sign up after all available divisions are filled may join the Waitlist. Waitlist teams will be contacted if availability occurs.

TEAM NAME POLICY

A team name that promotes intolerance, degrades a racial/ethnic/gender/religious group, infers an explicit sexual reference or promotes destructive behavior, is considered disrespectful to University members and the University community at large. The name will be deemed inappropriate by the Intramural Sports staff and be modified accordingly.

ADDING PARTICIPANTS TO A TEAM

All participants must be added to the team roster on IMLeagues before they can participate.

- 1. On the team homepage, click "Team Options" then "Add Players".
- 2. Search for participants' names.
- 3. Click "Add" next to the respective participant(s) desired for the team. (Note: all participants must first register at www.imleagues.com/wyoming before they can be added)

TEAM REGISTRATIONS-WITH FEES

The registration process is the same for all leagues, regardless of fees. Fees are typically collected by the venue being used. Example: For intramural golf, the fee is paid by the participant to Jacoby Golf Course in the Pro Shop. Please check sport specific rules for payment information if fees are associated with the event.



FREE AGENTS

For programming purposes, the Intramural Program only accepts complete teams during the entry process for team sports. Any person wishing to participate, but is unable to create a team of their own, should follow these steps to become a Free Agent:

- 1. Sign up on the Free Agent list in the given sport on IMLeagues in order to be contacted by a team needing additional participants. Please include your name, phone number, email, days available to play and what division(s) you are qualified to play in.
- 2. Sometimes, there are enough interested Free Agents that they are combined into their own team. If this is the case, you will be contacted.
- 3. Team captains have the ability to select "Free Agents Wanted" if they are in need of more participants.
- 4. Joining as a Free Agent does not guarantee that you will be placed on a team. It is in your best interest to reach out to team captains throughout the registration period.

PARTICIPATION GUIDELINES

For any one sport, a participant is allowed to participate only on 1 Men's team OR 1 Women's team AND 1 CoRec team. After checking in for a team, that player may not play for another team. When Competitive and Recreational divisions are offered for the same league, individuals may only play in one. Once a participant checks in on a second team illegally, they are suspended indefinitely from all further intramural competition, and all games played illegally by the offending team are forfeited. Participants must be added to the team roster on IMLeagues during the regular season. Participants must have checked in to at least one regular season game in order to be eligible for the playoffs.

LEVELS OF COMPETITION

Team Captains are responsible for selecting the appropriate level of competition. However, the Intramural Sports program reserves the right to place teams in any division in the post-season tournament or combine leagues/divisions. The Intramural Coordinator has the authority to establish special rulings whenever deemed necessary.

Men's - Open to all participants who are male students, faculty, staff, or spouses of the University. If a Women's division is not offered or unable to field enough teams, female participants will be allowed to play in the Men's division.

Women's - Open to all participants who are female students, faculty, staff, or spouses of the University. If a Men's division is not offered or unable to field enough teams, male participants will be allowed to play in the Women's division.

CoRec - Open to all men and women participants who are students, faculty, staff, or spouses of the University. Specific male to female ratio rules apply to each sport – see specific sport rules.

Open - No requirements as to the number of men or women participating on a team who are students, faculty, staff, or spouses of the University.

Competitive - For the higher skilled and competitive teams/individuals. This level is appropriate for teams with the majority of participants having played that sport in an organized setting (high school, city leagues, etc.).

Recreational - For the more recreational and average skilled competitors. This level is appropriate for those participants with a "just for the fun of it" type of attitude.

PLAYOFFS/POST-SEASON

PLAYOFF OPPORTUNITIES

All teams who competed in regular season play and maintained a sportsmanship rating of "2.5" or better are eligible for post-season play. Post-season tournaments are typically single elimination. The winners of each respective bracket will be crowned intramural champions. The playoffs will use the best-worst method of seeding whenever possible. All teams must receive above a "2.0" sportsmanship rating each game during the playoffs to continue on with the playoffs.

Playoff seeding will be determined by:

- 1. Win Percentage
- 2. Sportsmanship
- 3. Head-to-Head
- 4. Point Differential (final)

The Intramural Sports staff reserves the right to split leagues into two or more tournament brackets based on team records and point differentials. The Intramural Sports staff also reserves the right to move teams out of their regular season division or league and into a more appropriate division or league playoff bracket.

PLAYOFF ELIGIBILITY

All participants on the IMLeagues team roster that are not suspended and have checked in to at least one regular season game are eligible for playoff competition. Playoff rosters become "locked" and teams may no longer add new participants after the team's last game of the regular season.

NOTE: The intramural sports staff will only review cases pertaining to an injury. Therefore, that person should report the injury to the Intramural Sports Office. Then, and only then, another player can replace that person if that team has less than the starting lineup plus one substitute.

PLAYOFF SCHEDULING

Post-season games will be played at different times and days than a team's regular season playing time. Therefore, teams should be prepared to play at any time. The playoff schedule will be posted by 1:00 p.m. the day following the last day of regular season play. All team captains should check the tournament brackets immediately and direct any questions or game conflicts to the intramural staff in Half Acre 223.

Game Changes may only be requested for playoff games. There will be limited, set aside time available to accommodate game changes. A Change of Game Form must be filled out by a team member of the requesting team. This form must be filled out in the RecSports office by no later than 3:00 PM on the day you are scheduled to play. If you are scheduled to play on a Sunday, the request must be made by 3:00 PM on Friday. No requests will be accepted after 3:00 PM. For a game change to be approved, the opposing captain must agree on a time. Game change requests are not guaranteed!

EQUIPMENT AND ATTIRE

EQUIPMENT STATEMENT

The responsibility of getting equipment for an activity is specific to each sport. Specific rule sheets will outline this information for each sport. Team captains assume responsibility of their team's proper use and care of all equipment. The Intramural Sports staff takes precautions to make intramural activities as safe as possible for all participants. The Intramural Sports staff has the authority to ban the use of any equipment, personal property, or any items deemed hazardous to participants.

- Jewelry: No jewelry will be permitted in Intramural Sports events. Jewelry includes, but is not limited to, earrings, wedding rings or bands, other rings, necklaces, bracelets, rubber bands, and metal barrettes. If you refuse to remove your jewelry, you will not be allowed to participate.
 - o EXCEPTION: a medic alert bracelet or necklace must be taped down.
- Hats/Caps: Hard-billed hats are not allowed, unless specifically stated in the sport rules. Soft caps (stocking caps and wool caps) are allowed during outdoor events. Nothing that is tied in a knot will be permitted. This includes bandanas and dew rags if tied in a knot.
- Footwear: Gym shoes are required whenever participating in Half Acre, Corbett or the Multi-Purpose Gymnasium. Footwear deemed unsafe by the officials will be prohibited. Only tennis shoes, soft-soled, or molded rubber cleats are permitted in outdoor activities. No metal cleats are allowed.
- Proper athletic equipment must be used. In general, no equipment should be worn or used which
 could result in the injury of others or oneself. A team caught using prohibited equipment may be
 subject to forfeit.



FORFIET/DEFAULT

GRACE PERIOD

Intramural contests will begin at the scheduled game time. Game time is determined by the Official's or Supervisor's watch/clock on each field/court. In case of an unavoidable delay (i.e. weather or overtime match), the starting time may be adjusted at the discretion of the on-site Supervisor.

Game time is forfeit time! However, the opposing team captain will be offered the option of taking the win by forfeit or waiting for the minimum number of participants to arrive. The grace period is 10 minutes for games that are within a one hour time block and 5 minutes for games that are in a time block that is less than one hour. In the event the captain decides to wait, that decision is irreversible. The minimum number of participants for each sport will be listed on specific sport rule sheets.

FORFEIT POLICY

A forfeit is given to a team if:

- A team fails to have the minimum number of participants required to start a game at the scheduled game time. The minimum number of participants for each sport will be listed on specific sport rule sheets.
- A team uses a player who is ineligible or participates under an assumed name.
 - The forfeit only applies to protested contests.
- Continued unsportsmanlike conduct or unnecessary roughness.

Each forfeit will result in a loss for that team with a "0" Sportsmanship Rating. Forfeited games will not be rescheduled.

DEFAULT POLICY

A default is granted if a team notifies the Intramural Sports office that they will not have the minimum number of participants required to start a game. Teams must call the Intramurals office by 3:00 PM the day of an intramural activity, or by 5:30 PM on Friday for events that take place on Saturday or Sunday. Each default will result in a loss for that team with a "2.5" Sportsmanship Rating. Defaulted games will not be rescheduled.

SPORTSMANSHIP

RATING SYSTEM

The Intramural Sports department has developed the Sportsmanship Rating System with the purpose of making each individual participant responsible for his or her actions while participating in any intramural



sport, activity or event. Officials and/or Supervisors will assess sportsmanship with the ratings system after intramural events are played. The rating system is based on the following criteria: **Ratings may include .5

- <u>"4" Excellent</u>: Team members cooperate fully with staff, officials, and opponents throughout the game. The captain exhibits control over their team and spectators and communicates respectfully with officials and opponents. Team members demonstrate excellent sportsmanship and maintain an attitude of complete cooperation.
- <u>"3" Good</u>: Actions and attitudes of captain and team members are at an acceptable level. There is little to no complaining and an attitude of cooperation for the most part exists. Team members do not show any aggressive dissent toward game officials and/or opponents.
- <u>"2" Needs Improvement:</u> Team members and/or spectators exhibit verbal dissent toward opponents and/or game officials. Team members persist in questioning officials. The team has been warned about unnecessary roughness. Spectators related to the team fail to conduct themselves in an orderly fashion.
- <u>"1" Poor:</u> Team members continually exhibit dissent toward game officials, staff, and/or opponents either on or off the playing field/court. Repeated warnings and/or disciplinary penalties are given for unsportsmanlike behavior. The team and/or captain fail to cooperate with officials to keep game running in an orderly fashion. The team after being warned continues to play with unnecessary roughness.
- "0" Abusive: Team behavior is completely uncooperative and shows no respect for officials, staff, and/or opponents. The team captain displays no control over the actions of team members. Multiple penalties are given to a player, coach, or team spectator for unsportsmanlike conduct. A team member or spectator strikes, physically contacts, or threatens an opponent or Intramural Staff member. Team behavior warrants a discontinuance of the game for any reason. Spectators clearly related to the team engage in disorderly conduct that violates university regulations or jeopardizes the officials' control of the game. The team shows willful disregard for the policies and/or property of the University of Wyoming. Failure of ejected participant(s) and/or spectator(s) to leave the vicinity immediately, or returns to cause additional problems. Team fails to cooperate/comply with Intramural Sports staff/university officials while performing their duties; falsely represents or withholds any information requested. Team members are under the influence or in possession of drugs or alcohol.

Consequences for "1" and "0" Rating

- Team captain will be informed by the Supervisor of the "1" or "0" rating.
- Team is suspended until captain meets with the Intramural Sports Coordinator. The captain shall be held
 responsible to initiate the meeting in a timely manner to ensure availability of staff (preferably several
 days before team is scheduled). Teams will forfeit any games scheduled on subsequent days prior to the
 meeting. Following the meeting, the captain will be notified of the suspended status of their player(s).
- The usage of Campus Recreation facilities and/or services will be reviewed.



- The Dean of Students office may be notified for review.
- Team may face disqualification from the remainder of the season.

NOTE: The examples listed are to serve as examples, not requirements. Ratings given are solely up to the Intramural Sports department and its employees.

Each individual participating on a team should choose his or her team members carefully, as all team members will suffer the consequences of any disciplinary action taken by the Intramural Sports program against a team or individual for violation of the rules. The team captain is responsible for actions by an individual member of the team and for spectators directly related to that team. This includes conduct of all participants and spectators before, during and after a game. A team must maintain a "2.5" or better sportsmanship rating throughout the regular season to be eligible for playoffs. During tournament play, a team must receive above a "2.0" to continue on with play. If a team does not receive the required sportsmanship to advance, the opposing team will advance in their place.

PARTICIPANT EJECTIONS AND SUSPENSIONS

An ejected individual will remain suspended from all intramural activity until he/she meets with the Intramural Sports Coordinator. Sanctioning may range from intramural probation to expulsion from Campus Recreation programs and services for an indefinite period of time. As a result of a player being ejected, his/her team may be removed from intramural competition for the remainder of the current sport season.

PROTEST POLICIES

PARTICIPANT ELIGIBILITY PROTEST

A participant eligibility protest involves a team captain protesting the eligibility of his/her opponents. All eligibility protests must be submitted, in writing, to the RecSports office by the next working day.

- 1. This form is reviewed by the Intramural Sports staff the next business day.
- 2. The participant(s) in question are investigated.
- 3. If the participant(s) are found to be ineligible, the team that used the ineligible participants shall forfeit the protested contest and the opposing team will receive the win.

RULE INTERPRETATION PROTEST

A rule protest involves a rule interpretation during an intramural contest. All rule protests must be made by the protesting team's captain in the presence of the officials, supervisor, and the opposing team's captain at the time and place of the incident. Once play has resumed, no protests on past plays are acceptable. NO PROTESTS WILL BE ACCEPTED ON THE JUDGEMENT CALL OF THE OFFICIAL.



- 1. The protesting team captain shall fill out the Protest Form before the next 'live ball' situation.
- 2. The game is then played with the original ruling.
- 3. The protest is reviewed by the Intramural Sports staff the next business day.
- 4. A ruling shall be made by the Intramural Sports Coordinator.
 - a. If the protest is not accepted, the result of the game shall stand.
 - b. If the protest is accepted, the game shall be replayed with the right ruling from the time of the protest.

APPEALS

In the event that a participant or participants do not agree with the Intramural Coordinator's final decision on suspension, expulsion, or other penalty, participants have the option of making an appeal to the Intramural Advisory Committee (IAC). Appeals must be submitted, in writing, to the RecSports Office by the next business day after the final decision was made and at least 24 hours prior to the next contest. One day event suspensions can only be appealed if the suspension extends beyond the length of the event. No games will be rescheduled due to an appeal. Appeals must be in the form of a typed letter (hard copy) to the IAC with a description of what happened from the challenger's point of view, as well as why the punishment is deemed unfair. The Intramural Sports program reserves the right to bring witnesses and/or their testimony to the hearing. After the case has been presented to the IAC, committee members will vote to uphold or overturn the Intramural Coordinator's decision. The challenger will be notified of the IAC decision by the next working day. All IAC decisions will be final.

OVERALL CAMPUS CHAMPIONS

ELIGIBILITY

All University of Wyoming students, faculty, and staff who meet Intramural Sports eligibility requirements are permitted to compete.

ENTRY INFORMATION

A. Overall Campus Champion Entries

- Entry packets are available in the RecSports Office, Half Acre 223. The office is the only place registration is taken. A team will not be awarded points until the official team roster is on file in the RecSports Office. Entries are available September 1 through November 3.
- Teams can be comprised of students representing residence halls, fraternities, sororities, departments, or other student organizations. Students can also be organized independently (teams not associated with any of the previously mentioned groups). Faculty and staff of the university are also eligible to enter the competition. They can form faculty/staff or department teams or join student teams.
- Entries are available to Men's, Women's, or CoRec teams.



- A TEAM MUST KEEP THE SAME TEAM NAME THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE YEAR. Points will only be tallied for teams using the name registered on the official team roster. Exception: If a team enters two or more teams in an intramural event, they can distinguish between the teams by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.), letters (A, B, C, etc.) or colors (gold, green, etc.).
- The official team roster will be on file in the RecSports Office. The roster may not consist of more than 20 names. Points will not be counted for an individual until they are on the roster. A team may change 5 names at the end of each semester.

B. Entry in Intramural Competition

- An OCC team may enter as many teams/individuals as they would like for each league or tournament sport, individual sport, and dual sport.
- Each individual may only enter the OCC on 1 team (men's, women's, or CoRec).

POINT SYSTEM

A. Participation Points

- A team will receive 50 participation points for each team entered in a team sport.
- A team will receive 25 points for each individual entered in an individual or dual sport.
- Note: If two males or females from the same team are partners in a dual sport, both persons will receive the full 25 participation points.

B. Bonus Points

- Bonus points are awarded to both teams and individuals that place in the top eight in post-season or tournament play.
- An entry in the Competitive Divisions offers the most bonus points.
- If a team has more than one team in a division, bonus points will only be awarded to the team that advances the farthest.
- Note: All teams will still receive full participation points.
- In individual and dual sport competition, all individuals representing a team are eligible for bonus points.
- Note: If two males or females from the same team are partners in a dual sport, both individuals will receive full bonus points.



Team Table of Points					
Competitive Division*		Recreational Division		Recreational 2 Division	
Final Standing	Points	Final Standing	Points	Final Standing	Points
1st	100	1st	75	1st	50
2nd	85	2nd	65	2nd	35
3rd & 4th	70	3rd & 4th	55	3rd & 4th	25
5th - 8th	55	5th - 8th	45	5th - 8th	15

Individual/Dual Table of Points					
Competitive Division*		Recreational D	ivision		
Final Standing	Points	Final Standing	Points		
1st	30	1st	20		
2nd	25	2nd	15		
3rd & 4th	20	3rd & 4th	10		
5th - 8th	15	5th - 8th	5		

^{*}In sports without divisions, Competitive Division bonus points will be awarded.

C. Point Deductions

- All teams and individuals entered by a team are eligible for point deductions.
- Forfeits
 - o A team will lose 25 points for each forfeit in a team sport.
 - o A team will lose 10 points for each forfeit in an individual/dual sport.
- Defaults
 - Defaults do not result in the loss of points if proper notification is given to the Intramural Sports
 Office.

D. Co-Recreational Points

• If you're registered as a CoRec OCC team, you will only get points for CoRec sports (team, dual, or individual). If you're registered as a Women's or Men's team, you will only get points for Women's or Men's leagues (team, dual, or individual).

SCOREKEEPING

 Point totals will be tallied at the end of each sport. They will be kept in a database and entered by the RecSports staff. Scores will be posted at mid-semester and at the end of each semester. Signs will be posted on the RecSports bulletin boards and on the Intramural Sports webpage under the Overall Campus Champions link.



AWARDS

Winners from all three divisions will receive special T-shirts, personalized with the team name and the
names of all official team members. The RecSports office and representatives of each team will
determine the design and color of the shirts. Shirts will be ordered at the end of the spring semester
and may be picked up by the team captain or team members throughout the summer or when school
commences in the fall.

STUDENT EMPLOYMENT

OFFICIATING OPPORTUNITIES

Experience is not required (but preferred) in order to become an Intramural Sports Official. The Intramural Sports staff will train all Officials before sporting events begin. Intramural Sports Officials earn \$8.50/hour. If you become a registered or certified WHSAA official, you can earn \$10/game for that sport.

EXPECTATIONS OF INTRAMURAL OFFICIALS

The Intramural Sports Program recognizes that you are a student first. We will not jeopardize your status as a student with unreasonable or unjustifiable job demands. However, by accepting employment with us, you are accepting a commitment for which you are responsible. As an employee of the Intramural Sports program, your actions are representative of the department. A positive attitude and professionalism towards participants and co-workers contributes greatly to the overall quality and success of the program. Officials of the Intramural Sports program must know and perform all responsibilities related to their job.

HIRING PROCESS

Hiring typically happens late summer/early fall. Depending on our numbers, we may also hire in the spring. Please contact the RecSports office if you are interested in becoming an Intramural Sports Official.

EXTRAMURAL TOURNAMENTS

Some sports will have state, regional, or national post-season tournaments. All UW Intramural Sports teams have the opportunity to participate in these tournaments. The Intramural Sports program may pay the entry fee to these tournaments for the winners of the different playoff brackets that we offer. Lodging and travel expenses are not typically included in any fees paid for by the Intramural Sports program. Many of the tournaments are offered through NIRSA. More information about theses tournaments can be found here: http://play.nirsa.net/nirsa-championship-series/.



CONTACT INFORMATION

Office: Half Acre Gym, Room 223

Phone: 307-766-4175

Email: imsports@uwyo.edu

Website: http://www.uwyo.edu/rec/intramural-sports/index.html

RECSPORTS STAFF

Chris Lee

Intramural Sports Coordinator

Office: 307-766-6492

Email: christopher.lee@uwyo.edu

Adam Burke

Club Sports Coordinator Office: 307-766-6396

Email: adam.burke@uwyo.edu

Abbie Connally

Business Manager Office: 307-766-6740

Email: aconnal2@uwyo.edu

SOCIAL MEDIA

Facebook: @WYOimsports

Twitter: @WYOimsports

Instagram: @WYOimsports

Snapchat: @WYOimsports

Mason Kaiser

Recreational Sports Graduate Assistant

Office: 307-766-4175

Email: mkaiser6@uwyo.edu

Kelly Ibele

Recreational Sports Graduate Assistant

Office: 307-766-4175 Email: <u>kibele@uwyo.edu</u>

Kaleb Ashworth

Athletic Trainer Graduate Assistant

Office: 307-766-6678

Email: kashwort@uwyo.edu



IMPORTANT PHONE NUMBERS

CONTACT	NUMBER
Any Emergency Situation	911
Laramie Police Department	307-721-2526
UW Police Department	307-766-5176
Ambulance Service	307-721-5332
Laramie Fire Department	307-721-5332
National Weather Service	307-635-9901
Wyoming Road Conditions	1-888-996-7623
Colorado Road Conditions	1-303-639-1234
Poison Control	1-800-222-1222
Ivinson Hospital	307-742-2141
Student Health	307-766-2130
RecSports Office	307-766-4175
Campus Recreation Business Office	307-766-5586
Intramural Sports Coordinator	307-766-6492
Club Sports Coordinator	307-766-6396
Half Acre Gym	307-766-3370

LOCATION OF RECSPORTS FACILITIES

Half Acre Gym

North of 13th Street, North of the Wyoming Union.

Recreation Fields

N 22nd Street and E Armory Road. Across from Aragon Softball Fields.

Corbett Gym

North of Grand Ave. on 19th Street.

Indoor Practice Facility

Corner of N 22nd Street and E Willett Drive.

Tennis Complex

East of Recreation Fields, South of E Armory Road.

Jacoby Golf Course

East end of campus, North of Ivinson Memorial Hospital.

Cowboy Baseball Field

East of N 22nd Street on Willett Drive.

Aragon Softball Fields

22nd Street and Armory Road.

Blue Softball Field

East of 22nd Street on Armory Road. Adjacent to the Aragon Soccer Complex. Part of Little League baseball complex.

Fieldhouse

Adjacent to War Memorial Stadium and the Multipurpose Gym.

Fraternity Mall

East of 15th Street, between Fraternity and Sorority Rows.

LaPrele Park - disc golf

2199 E Holliday Drive.

City of Laramie Ice Arena

3510 Garfield St. Across from Laramie GM Auto Center.